KENT FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Thursday, 8th July, 2021

2.00 pm

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone

\_ /

| Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk




Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

KENT FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Thursday, 8th July, 2021, at 2.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Telephone 03000 416749
Maidstone

Membership (7)

Conservative (5): Mr N J Collor, Mr A R Hills, Ms M McArthur, Mrs L Parfitt-Reid and
Ms L Wright
Labour (1) Mr B H Lewis

Liberal Democrat (1) Mr M J Sole

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Substitutes
2.  Election of Chairman

3. Terms of Reference of the Committee
1.1  Membership: 7 Members. Conservative: 5, Labour:1, Liberal Democrat:1

1.2  In accordance with the Localism Act 2011 (Schedule 2), this Committee is
responsible for reviewing and scrutinising the exercise by risk management
authorities of flood risk management functions or coastal erosion risk
management functions which may affect the local authority’s area.

1.3  This Committee is responsible for:

(a) the preparation, monitoring and review (in conjunction with the Flood
Risk Management Officer) of a strategic action plan for flood risk
management in Kent, taking into account any Select Committee


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/schedule/2

recommendations, the Pitt Review and relevant requirements of the
Flood and Water Management Act 2010,

(b) reporting annually (and more often if necessary) to the Scrutiny
Committee and to the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways,
Transport and Waste,

(c) reviewing and responding to any consultation on the implementation of
the Pitt Review and the future development of the Flood and Water
Management Act 2010,

(d) receiving reports from the Southern Regional Flood and Coastal
Committee and responding as appropriate,

(e) the investigation of water resource management issues in Kent.

1.4 A risk management authority must comply with a request from this
Committee for information and a response to a report.

1.5 The Committee may include (non-voting) persons who are not members of
the authority, including representatives of District Councils, the
Environment Agency and Internal Drainage Boards.

4. Declarations of Members’ Interest relating to items on today’s agenda
5.  Minutes of the meeting on 15 March 2021 (Pages 1 - 8)
6. Introduction to the work of the Committee

7. Short Term Adaptation for Long Term Resilience to Climate Change - Presentation
by Tom Hammond, KCC Environmental Projects

8. Little Venice Country Park and Marina (Pages 9 - 46)

9. Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and KCC severe weather
response activity (Pages 47 - 50)

10. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
03000 416814

Wednesday, 30 June 2021


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29/contents

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

KENT FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent Flood Risk Management Committee held in the
Online on Monday, 15 March 2021.

PRESENT: Mr A R Hills (Chairman), Mr A H T Bowles, Mr | S Chittenden,
Mr K Pugh, Mr H Rayner, Mrs C Mackonochie (Tunbridge Wells (BC),
Mrs G Brown (KALC), Mr D Brown (Kent Fire and Rescue),

Mr G Brooker (Kent Fire and Rescue) and Mr C Mackonochie (KALC)

ALSO PRESENT:

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr M Tant (Flood and Water Manager), Mr T Harwood
(Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager) and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services
Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

Minutes of the meeting on 23 November 2020
(Item 3)

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2020 are correctly
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

Kent Flood Action Group Forum
(Item)

(1) The Chairman welcomed Mr David Goff to the meeting. He explained that the
purpose was for him to give a brief introduction to the newly formed Kent Flood
Action Group Forum. A more detailed presentation would be given to the Committee
at its meeting in July.

(2) Mr Goff said that the Kent Flood Action Group Forum (KFAGF) had been set
up in November 2020, based on a model created in West Sussex some 3 to 4 years
earlier. The KFAGF met fortnightly and aimed to promote effective communication
and collaboration between Kent'’s local flood groups in order to ensure that all ideas,
information and experiences could be shared. It was supported in this aims by all the
relevant agencies and organisations. The intention was to be proactive so that small,
isolated action groups could be supported.

(3) Mr Goff said that the KFAGF’s current membership consisted of action groups
from Collier Street, Ightham, East Peckham, Hildenborough, Tunbridge Wells and
Headcorn. Support was provided by the National Flood Forum. Issues discussed by
the KFAGF included riparian ownership, planning and development and surface
water drainage.

Page 1



4) Mr Goff then said that communities had a great deal of experience to share
and that doing so would protect or alleviate the misery of flooding. It was vital that
everyone worked together, and he looked forward to working closely with the Kent
Flood Risk Management Committee.

(5)  The Chairman thanked Mr Goff for his contribution. He said that the creation
of the KFAGF addressed one of his greatest concerns which was how information
could be widely disseminated.

(6) RESOLVED to thank Mr David Goff for his introduction to the KFAGF and to
invite him to give a more detailed presentation to the next meeting of the
Committee.

Dates of future meetings
(Item 4)

The Committee noted the following future meeting dates:-

Monday, 5 July 2021,
Monday, 22 November 2021;
Monday, 14 March 2022.

Update from the Environment Agency - Presentation by Sally Harvey
(Item 5)

(1) Ms Sally Harvey (Environment Agency Kent and South London Area Director)
gave a presentation. The accompanying slides can be found within the electronic
papers for this meeting on the KCC website.

(2) Ms Harvey began her presentation on a positive note by saying that 50,000
properties in the Kent and South London area were now better protected from
flooding as a result of the six-year capital programme. In fact, this figure had only
very recently been achieved. The target figure for the programme was now 54,584
homes which was some 5,000 more than had originally been planned in 2015/16.

(3) Ms Harvey then turned to the Grant in Aid (GiA) performance during the
programme period. She said that £314m of capital GiA work was due to have been
undertaken by the end of the programme and that efficiency savings of £44.7m had
been achieved. A further £35m had been secured from other sources.

(4)  Ms Harvey moved on to describe some of the schemes that had been a part of
the programme. The first of these was the Medway Property Flood Resilience
Programme. She said that 285 properties had been individually protected across
several parishes including Yalding and Collier Street. There had been some
significant challenges and Members of the Environment Agency’s Regional
Committee would shortly be considering a report providing assurance that the flood
resilience of these properties was robust.

(5)  The Broomhill Sands Coastal Defences Scheme was a £30m scheme to
reduce the risk of flooding to 1,388 homes and over 100 local businesses. This had

Page 2



included the delivery of 265k tonnes of rock and the removal of over 36.1k tonnes of
clay.

(6) Ms Harvey said that the Hythe Ranges Scheme would be celebrating its
official opening at the end of the month. The MoD had contributed 27% of the
funding for the £25m investment which would protect 787 properties. The work had
involved the refurbishment and raising of 43 timber groynes, construction of a 200m
rock revetment and recharging the shingle beach with over 300,000m?* of material.

(7)  The Sandwich Town Tidal Defence Scheme had won a Gold in the National
Considerate Constructors Awards. The Scheme protected 488 homes and 94
businesses and was delivered in partnership with Pfizer and Kent County Council at
a cost of £24.6m, £1.1m of which consisted of recovery works following the 2013 tidal
surge.

(8)  The Fairlight Coast Protection Scheme for Rother DC reduced the risk of
coastal erosion to 150 properties. The works involved the construction of rock
revetment at the toe of cliffs. £1.5m Capital Funding had been allocated to the
Scheme and a further £154k contribution had been secured.

(9)  The Scheme at Coronation Road in Folkestone Council reduced the coastal
erosion risk to 10 properties and the National infrastructure. Works involved: major
concrete repairs to Coronation Parade, impressed cathodic protection to steel
reinforcement, and 60m of rock revetment to prevent outflanking. This had been
funded to the tune of £3m with a further £1.9m contributed from other sources.

(10) Ms Harvey continued by describing the works at Salt Fleet Flats which
highlighted some of the wider ways in which flood defence schemes were delivered.
In this case, the EA had been able to deliver 67 acres of intertidal habitats. This had
been the first managed realignment ever carried out in the county of Kent.

(11) Ms Harvey then showed a slide titled “Managing Flood Risk on Romney
Marsh.” This consisted of a map demonstrating the breadth and complexity of the
hard and soft defences that had either been completed or were ongoing to reduce
flood risk to homes and businesses for the next 100 years in an area which was at or
below high tide level. Any breaches of flood defences could have a very significant
impact on over 1400 homes and businesses as well as important natural habitats.

(12) Ms Harvey turned to the programme for 2021/22. She explained that although
the EA was moving from one 6-year programme to another on 31 March 2021, the
intention was to ensure that the programme transition was seamless. Flood defence
work had evolved over the past 6 years. Climate change was now recognised as a
very significant factor, resulting in a growing emphasis on carbon reduction. Building
resilience and adapting to climate change would play an increasing role in defending
the country. A total of £5.2bn was available through GiA to protect homes across
England. Flood defence work would offer wider benefits to the community by
benefiting and enhancing the environment. It was vital that everyone worked in
collaboration in order that the necessary outcomes could be delivered. The
programme would seek to meet need sustainably.

(13) Ms Harvey went on to consider the financial breakdown of the next 6- year
programme. It was intended to protect 16,000 homes in Kent through GIA funding of

Page 3



£125m. There was, however, a funding gap of £15m despite external contributions
of some £12m.

(14) The planned schemes were spread across Kent. The greatest of these was
the Leigh expansion and Hildenborough Embankments Scheme. Other important
projects were the Medway Estuary and Swale Flood and Coastal Risk Management
Strategy, including the Sheerness frontage improvements, the South Sheppey
frontage improvements and the Stour Pumping Station modernisation. These
projects between them would cost £10m.

(15) Ms Harvey said that the 2021/22 programme would include work on the Leigh
Expansion and Hildenborough Embankments. The Leigh storage area would be
expanded by 24% (in capacity rather than in size). This would protect a total of 1,570
properties and businesses.

(16) Ms Harvey’s final slide focussed on the Lydd Ranges Scheme. Urgent work
had needed to be undertaken at Jury’s Gap in 2020 to retain the green wall which
had been in imminent danger of being breached. The total funding for the Lydd
Scheme was £31.3m of which the MoD was contributing £13.2m. 1,761 properties
would be at reduced risk of coastal flooding once the Scheme had been completed.

(17) Ms Harvey replied to questions from Mr Chittenden by saying that the
defences she had described would prevent surface water and fluvial flooding, but not
groundwater flooding when the land became saturated. Although she had used the
phrase “help to reduce flooding”, the risks were measured by specific categories in
any particular year. A property would only be considered to have been improved
when it fulfilled the criteria to be moved into a better category of flood risk. It was
important to recognise that there would come a point where improving flood defences
would become a decreasingly effective option. There was consequently a need to
develop adaptation and resilience. At Lydd, for example, the flood defences were
only being built to last for 25 years with a view to moving the defence line back to
enable the environmental benefits of this protected area to flourish.

(18) The Chairman explained that the flood maps produced by the EA identified
flood risk as though there were no protection measures in place. The defences at
Lydd would last until 2055. At that point, the effects of climate change would be more
identifiable, as would the best flood defence strategy.

(19) Ms Harvey replied to another question from Mr Chittenden by saying that the
situation at Yalding was extremely complicated due to its location at the confluence of
three rivers. A number of flood defence options had been modelled following the
flood events of 2013/14. Currently, there was no technically possible project that
would be socially acceptable or cost effective. Different measures were therefore
being explored through the Medway Flood Partnership to ensure adaption and
resilience.

(20) Mr Rayner asked whether the EA could give an estimated update for the
Hildenborough Embankment scheme. He had recently attended the Parish Council’s
Annual Meeting and been informed that there were objections to aspects of the
scheme that could lead to an indefinite postponement of the works.

Page 4



(21) Ms Harvey replied that she would notify Mr Rayner of the finish date after the
meeting. There was to be a public inquiry in April 2021 at the part of the proposal for
the flood storage area. This meant that the timescales for the works would need to
be reviewed (partly for technical reasons). There was, however, no intention to not
go ahead.

(22) The Chairman suggested that the EA could consider publishing their design
life projections for their schemes, including the likely date of review, so that this
information could be disseminated through the Parish Councils.

(23) Ms Harvey replied to a question from Mrs Mackonochie by saying that
properties built after a certain date (later identified by Mrs Brown as after 2013) would
not be able to attract funding for adaptations. The intention was that all properties
built after that date would be flood resilient.

(24) The Chairman said that some 400 new houses were being built in Romney
Marsh in a Flood Zone 3 area. These would not be flood resilient. He said that
DEFRA should take steps to ensure that all such new builds were flood resilient.

(25) Mrs Brown referred top paragraphs 149 to 158 of the NPPF which she said
meant that all new properties had to be flood resilient.

(26) RESOLVED that Sally Harvey be thanked for her presentation and that its
content be noted.

Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and KCC
severe weather response activity
(Item 6)

(1) Mr Harwood introduced his report by saying that since publication of the
agenda papers, the number of Met Office Weather Warnings had risen from 45 to 47
between November 2020 and March 2021. Consequently, the table in Appendix 2
should be amended so that there were 6 Warnings for Fog and 5 different events.
Likewise, the number of Warnings for Wind had increased to 6 in 5 different events.
This meant that the number of severe weather warnings was almost identical as for
the same period in the previous year.

(2) Mr Harwood then said that the most significant events of the period had been
the very dry November. There had been no alarms until the week of Christmas 2020
with the arrival of Storm Bella bringing high winds and heavy rain. This had
coincided with the Covid19 testing requirements, the suspension of sailings of freight
to Calais and Boulogne as well as the problems at Manston where the lorry drivers
had been stranded over the festive period.

(3) Mr Harwood turned to the precautionary evacuation which had taken place at
Little Venice on 27 December. The co-operation between the various agencies as
well as the owner and manager of the Park had worked smoothly.

(4) The Medway Confluence Partner Group had met during the festive period,
working very well together to deploy sandbags. They had also been particularly

Page 5



successful in terms of clean-up and recovery interventions. This had involved the
heavily silted drainage infrastructure.

(5) Mr Harwood said that there had been significant surface water flooding in
January in sporadic locations across the entire county of Kent; from Edenbridge to
Sheerness in the West to Alkham in the East. This had impacted on winterbournes
such as the Nailbourne at Barham and the Drellingbourne in Alkham Valley.

(6) There had been highway flooding at Boughton Monchelsea where KCC
Highways had worked very proactively in deploying pumps and tankers in order to
clear the water before it could affect property. The community had also been
proactive in alerting the agencies to the dangers at an early stage. The Boughton
Monchelsea PC meeting, which Mr Harwood had attended following the event, had
also provided important feedback.

(7) Mr Harwood continued by saying that Storm Darcey had brought persistent
and occasionally heavy snow to the county on 7 and 8 February. No flooding had
occurred, but there had been widespread disruption to the Medway Valley Line and
to both the strategic and local highway networks including the A229 at Bluebell Hill
and the A249 at Detling.

(8) Mr Harwood concluded his introduction by referring to his report to the
previous meeting. Events had transpired as anticipated in that report. It was likely
that the next few months would be a quieter period in terms in respect of severe
weather impacts.

9) Mrs Brown said that she and David Goff (Chair of Collier Street PC) had
worked closely together during an unusual period which had seen the local villages
affected by different floods instead of experiencing them at the same time as was
normally the case. She then expressed the concern, which Mr Goff shared, over the
number of alerts and warnings issued. This resulted in the local population reacting
with insufficient urgency on those occasions when a significant event occurred. The
EA issued flood alerts as a notification to farmers to move their livestock, but local
people were treating them as false alarms. She and Mr Goff had arranged to discuss
this with the EA to see what steps could be taken to overcome this problem. This
could involve a reduction in the number of alerts or a publicity campaign to explain
the purpose of the flood alerts.

(10) Mr Harwood said that he would also discuss this with the Environment
Agency. There had been significantly fewer alerts in Yalding and Collier Street over
the winter than in that of 2019/20. Flood alerts were often necessary even when no
damage to properties was expected because of the potentially significant impact on
the highways network. There had been quite a few road closures in the Yalding/
Collier Street area during the winter, and alerts had been important for the blue light
services, particularly ambulances.

(11) Mrs Brown said that the problem with the alert system was that each one of
them was received in every part of the river Beult. This contrasted with the Warnings
which were far more locally focussed.

(12) Mr Harwood referred to paragraph 2.5 of the report which set out that there
had been 91 Flood Alerts and 26 Warnings since November 2020 which represented

Page 6



a considerable reduction from the 147 Flood Alerts and 44 Warnings for the same
period in 2019/20.

(13) The Chairman said that he hoped that the discussions between the Parish
Councils and the EA would result in the alerts being better targeted and more clearly
expressed.

(14) RESOLVED that the warnings received since the last meeting of the
Committee be noted.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

To: Kent Flood Risk Management Committee — 23rd November 2020
From: Tony Hills, Chairman of the Kent Flood Risk Management
Committee

Stephanie Holt-Castle, Interim Director of Environment, Planning
and Enforcement

Subject: Little Venice Country Park and Marina

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To update the Committee on the Little Venice Country Park and Marina

Background

1.1  The issue of Little Venice was raised during the Kent Flood Risk Management
Committee meeting on 9 March 2020. | therefore invited interested parties to
participate in a site visit and discussion. At the same time, legal advice on the
possibility of undertaking a compulsory purchase was sought in accordance
with the Committee’s wishes.

1.2  Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, it proved impossible to hold a physical site visit.
Furthermore, the use of a drone to film the site was not possible due to GDPR
considerations. Nevertheless, all the attendees were very familiar with the site
which ensured that a productive discussion could take place on a Virtual basis.

2. The Virtual Site Visit

2.1  The Virtual site visit was held on 23 September 2020. Notes of this visit
included in the report to the November 2020 meeting of the Committee
(Appendix 1). The Committee agreed to receive a further report in July 2021.

3. Discussion with the Landowner.

3.1  Mr Albert Lee, the owner of the Little Venice site wrote to Mr Tony Hills, the
Chairman of the Committee asking for a meeting to discuss the situation at the
site. This meeting was held on 8 April 2021. It was attended by the Chairman,
Max Tant and Tony Harwood from KCC and by Mr Albert Lee (landowner) and
Iris Lara (site manager). Andrew Tait from Democratic Services was also
present.

Page 9



3.2

3.3

3.4

The meeting was regarded by all parties as a positive experience as one of the
outcomes was that closer liaison between all parties involved was set as a
welcome goal for the future.

The Chairman agreed to Mr Lee’s request for him to attend the July Committee
meeting in order to discuss Members’ concerns in a formal setting. Mr Lee also
undertook to provide supporting documentation.

Mr Lee has provided the following documentation:-

Appendix 2: Introductory Letter

Appendix 3: The Little Venice Flood Plan.
Appendix 4: Photographs of Flotation Systems.
Appendix 5: Information provided to residents.
Appendix 6: Community Flood Plan (Redacted).

4. Conclusions

4.1  The three areas of concern identified in September 2020 were:

The possibility of zoning the site by floodwater depth and velocity; better
informing the residents of the flood risks on site; and establishing the exact
level of responsibility for the duty of care at the site, including for evacuation
and return of residents, and how this will be enforced if required.

4.2  The documents provided suggest that information is being provided to the
residents and that the duty of care is taken very seriously. Liaison on the
question of site zoning is taking place and there is a willingness on all sides to
see whether this can be undertaken.

5 Recommendations

5.1 The Committee is invited to note the progress made together with any matters
arising from the discussion with the site landowner.

5.  Report Author:

Tony Hills, Chairman of the Kent Flood Risk Management Committee

Contact Details

Andrew Tait (Senior Democratic Services Officer
tel. 03000 416749,

email andrew.tait@kent.gov.uk

Page 10



mailto:andrew.tait@kent.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1

To: Kent Flood Risk Management Committee — 23rd November 2020

From: Tony Hills, Chairman of the Kent Flood Risk Management
Committee
Stephanie Holt-Castle, Interim Director of Environment, Planning
and Enforcement

Subject: Virtual Site Visit to Little Venice

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To inform the Committee of the virtual site visit to Little Venice on 23

September 2020
1. Background
1.1  The issue of Little Venice was raised during the Kent Flood Risk Management

1.2

Committee meeting on 9 March 2020. | therefore invited interested parties to
participate in a site visit and discussion. At the same time, legal advice on the
possibility of undertaking a compulsory purchase was sought in accordance
with the Committee’s wishes.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, it proved impossible to hold a physical site visit.
Furthermore, the use of a drone to film the site was not possible due to GDPR

considerations. Nevertheless, all the attendees were very familiar with the site
which ensured that a productive discussion could take place on a Virtual basis.

The Virtual Site Visit

The Virtual site visit was held on 23 September 2020. The list of attendees
was:

Tony Hills (KCC — Chairman of Kent Flood Risk Management Committee)
Max Tant (KCC — Flood and Water Manager)

Tony Harwood (KCC — Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager)

Derek Mortimer (Maidstone BC — Chairman of Communities, Housing and
Environment Committee)

James Bailey (Maidstone BC — Development Manager)

Geraldine Brown (Yalding PC — Chairman)

Guy Gardener (Kent Resilience Team - Senior Resilience Officer)

Luke Thompson (Environment Agency — Area Incident Manager; Kent, South
London and East Sussex)

Page 11



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Jonathan Alawo (Environment Agency - Team Leader Flood Resilience Team;
Kent, South London & East Sussex)

Grant Brooker (Kent Fire and Rescue- Water Resource and Flooding).
Andrew Tait (KCC Democratic Services)

All participants agreed that the safety of the residents was paramount. They
also noted that legal advice separately obtained by both Maidstone Borough
Council and Kent County Council clearly stated that the CPO option suggested
at the Committee meeting was incapable of being successfully pursued. The
attendees therefore discussed what measures could be undertaken to improve
health and safety on the site.

Major flooding events are expected to occur more often as a consequence of
climate change. Research has established that a 1 in 100-year flooding event
occurs every three years somewhere in the UK. This does not, however mean
that any one location is at a level of risk substantially greater than that.

Little Venice is a site which is inhabited by a significant number of elderly and
vulnerable residents. It is very prone to flooding. The evacuation of vulnerable
people is typically a challenge to achieve safely.

The Environment Agency identified a Community Flood Plan for Little Venice
had been developed following the event of 2013/14. This had provision for
Flood Wardens, although there is not one there at this time. The aim is to rectify
this through training for flood wardens which was due to be held shortly after
our Virtual meeting took place. The updates to the Flood Plan will follow the
flood warden training and be written bearing in mind the debrief following the
events of the winter of 2019/20.

The draft Medway Confluence Flood Plan covers Laddingford, Yalding and
Collier Street and sets out arrangements for sandbag provision and highways
management in those localities during a localised event. As stated above,
there was a debrief following the events of the winter of 2019/20.

Little Venice was previously covered by three different warning systems that
were issued at different times. This has now been reduced to a single warning
that is tailored to the site without warning the rest of the Yalding community
unnecessarily.

Gauge boards have been installed on site to enable water height to be
measured at Hampstead Lock so that the anticipated extent of the flooding can
be communicated to the residents. The residents typically expect the site to be
flooded to some degree every winter. The Flood Warning messaging service
and the gauge boards improve the ability of site residents to understand the
level of severity during any flooding event that is going to happen. The 2013/14
Flood Plan and the Evacuation Plan that arose from it have worked very well
since its creation and the residents on site have been able to self-evacuate
quite effectively. This was also the case during the 2019/20 event where there

Page 12



2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

was a de facto Flood Warden to assist. There were, however, significant issues
for the most vulnerable residents.

One of the problems with the Evacuation Plan for Little Venice is that it is
unclear who has the responsibility to decide who should be evacuated and who
should remain on site. In March 2020, Little Venice was left with 16 very elderly
and vulnerable people who the Fire Authority had to evacuate overnight by
boat. It then proved problematic to move them to appropriate temporary
accommodation. Maidstone BC as the evacuating authority bore the cost of
doing so. This did not extend to returning those people to their homes once the
Emergency was over. The aim should be to ensure that evacuation of all
residents is undertaken at the same time rather than piecemeal as was the
case on this occasion. Responsibility for returning people to their homes after
the event needs to be clarified.

From an Emergency Planning perspective, it was a complex matter to resolve
how to evacuate people, who were elderly and vulnerable, without inflicting
harm. In March 2020, there were significant problems in persuading people to
evacuate and to identify appropriate specialist accommodation. The difficulties
experienced in evacuating the Little Venice site have grown between 2013 and
2020 as the residents have become older and more vulnerable.

There is an inherent risk to mobile homes, even though they are tethered.
Furthermore, many of the residents initially reacted to the March 2020 flood
event with complacency. Consideration needs to be given to how the site can
be made safer in terms of layout. Some parts of the site are very vulnerable to
flooding, representing a danger to life when taken in combination with the
vulnerability of some of the residents. This risk is born by residents, rescue
workers and volunteers, which also places pressure on Adult Social Care and
Health staff, who must ensure safeguarding.

Mobile homes are still being advertised at Little Venice for sale at a price that is
attractive for people who have retired. It is not clear whether people
contemplating purchase have been informed of the risks associated with
purchasing a mobile home in sites such as Little Venice. One suggested
response is to warn the residents of the nature of the risks, possibly by a letter
undertaken by the Parish Council.

The point was made that quite a few of the residents mistakenly believed that
they had purchased permanent homes and had sold their former houses under
this misapprehension. Furthermore, some of the more elderly and vulnerable
residents have acquired the right to live there permanently over time.

Little Venice has an extensive planning history. An enforcement investigation
was carried out by Maidstone BC some ten years ago because the lawful use
was for temporary holiday homes rather than for permanent accommodation,
and it was believed that a number of people had been living there permanently
for a considerable period.

Maidstone BC informed the virtual site meeting that there are some planning
restrictions, including a S106 Agreement which is effectively a tie within the

Page 13



3.1

main park area for a restriction of usage for that area on site. There is also a
permission for the access; a 2019 Lawful Development Certificate (LDC) for the
ancillary recreational use of an area in connection with Little Venice Country
Park. A new application has been received by Maidstone BC for quarter of the
land covered by the LDC. If granted, this would lead to a further 40 caravans
with the possibility of a further 120 if the planning process were to be repeated.

Conclusions

The meeting identified a number of aspects that would benefit from further
multi-agency consideration. These are:-

3.1.1 exploring further were zoning the site by floodwater depth and velocity (although

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2

3.3

3.4.

care would need to be taken to ensure that the residents would not be misled
into believing that they would no longer be at risk if placed in a lower risk zone);

better informing the residents of the flood risks on site

establishing the exact level of responsibility for the duty of care at the site,
including for evacuation and return of residents, and how this will be enforced if
required.

The participants all agreed that they had become better informed of the full
circumstances prevailing at the site, including options which could most
productively be pursued.

The exercise was in my opinion an important step forward in improving health
and safety at Little Venice. This meeting came about as an Initiative raised at
the Committee. This reflects very well upon the manner in which it carries out
its role. Whilst the site visit has not solved the problem, it has been able to
facilitate work towards an improved situation.

| recommend that the Committee should receive an update report on progress
at Little Venice within the next calendar year.

4.1

4.2

Recommendations

The Committee is invited to note the report and the three areas at 3.1 that will
continue to be explored to a point of resolution

The Committee is invited to agree that an update will be presented within the
next calendar year.

5.

Report Author:

Tony Hills, Chairman of the Kent Flood Risk Management Committee

Contact Details

Page 14




Andrew Tait (Senior Democratic Services Officer
tel. 03000 416749,
email andrew.tait@kent.gov.uk

Page 15


mailto:andrew.tait@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



e Lee Par k G

Hampstead Lane, eS . _,/

Yalding,
Kent. ME18 6HH Residential and Leisure Parks throughout the UK

Telephone: 01622 814158 Email: info@littlevenicepark.co.uk Web: www.littlevenicepark.co.uk

21% June 2021

Dear Mr Tait and My Hill
With reference to our zoom meeting on the 8" April 2021
{ have enclosed our Flood Plan, which is implemented by myself and Iris Lara.

It gives a bit of an in depth look at the procedure that we apply every winter, and we have enclosed
photos and information on how the floatation system works.

Each year if there are any updates to be added, they arc added when they need to be.

| hope that this information is useful to understanding what goes on through the winter on the park,
and | hope this puts your mind at rest that we have a plan that covers everything in the event of a
flood.

It was great to meet you at the zoom meeting and to know that we have all the help at hand if
needed as a part of Yalding Village.

Kind Regards

V
Mr Albert Lee

Registered Office: Saddlebrook ParkP8@8ed #ay Road, Leysdown, Kent ME12 4LT.
Company Number 10506357 VAT Registration Number 194 6503 85



This page is intentionally left blank



LITTLE VENICE COUNTRY PARK AND MARINA
HAMPSTEAD LANE
YALDING
KENT ME18 6HH

LITTLE VENICE FLOOD PLAN.

Our Winter starts in October when we prepare our gardens and caravans for the winter weather.
I send out letters for the gardens to be checked and all outside items such as garden furniture,
Plant pots, fencing, and any loose items to be put in the shed or on our balconies.

We then do our Garden check list, marking any that need attention, send out letters of items that
need attention, this includes park areas, Riverbanks, and roads on site.

We then start our Community Flood Plan.

Our community flood plan includes,

List of Flood Wardens, including phone numbers, making sure they are prepared for Day and Night
calls.

Plans of the park including park maps, and emergency points, they are all from the park, so they
know the layout of the park.

We update our Customer List, including checks on phone numbers are up to date.
We list our vulnerable customers, including contact numbers.

We list ALL our up-to-date contact numbers with Kent County Council, Maidstone borough Council,
And Kent Fire and Rescue, and check our Flood Warnings from the E.A are all up to date.

When we sell a property, we explain about the flooding and we give one of our flood booklets to
give them the information needed, in case of a flood.

We then send out a letter for everyone to be prepared, to go home or to family, friends etc.

Having a bag ready in case of evacuation, which include all clothes, medication, phones, chargers,
and pets are ready, also an address to go to which may include a hotel for those who may not be
able to go home at that time, | help will with arranging Hotels that are available, phone numbers and
booking for those who do not have Mobiles or Internet.

We then get our Park Boats ready and up and running, we now have two Park Boats if needed, to
bring people to the Park top Carpark if some water comes over the roads, This depends on how
quick we get the £.A information, in the past 2 years we have had the information very quick which
is relayed to us through Maidstone Borough Council, They let us know whether to evacuate or if its
ok to stay, which has worked out excellent and would like to thank them for all the work they do in
helping with this information.

We have some people on the park who have had Caravans on here for 20, 30, 40 years, and know
the area very well.

Page 19



We have had Floatation Systems put on the underneath of all of the Caravans and Lodges, for the
last 20 years, which enables them to rise to the height of 12ft, the levels of the ground on Little
Venice varies around the Park, some parts are higher than others, so some may g0 up and some may
not, depending on the height of the water, but all are made to go up to the full 12t if needed,
because of this, no damage caused.

I have included a plan and photos of how the look and how they work., having these fitted makes
our Caravans and Lodges fully insurable.

We understand all about the flooding in Yalding, and feel luckier than most, as they float.

No one has ever been injured here, and our knowledge goes back a few decades, and we want to
keep it that way, so we do all that we can to prevent it happening. | know people that live in the
Village and know that they waited a long time to get back into their homes through ficod damage,
some over a year, so we know we are incredibly lucky to have the system that we have.

We work extremely hard to make sure that everyone is safe and are looked after if flooding does
occur and we hope this shows in the Flood Plan that we have on the park.

Page 20



Page 21

swolrchg o Ol ty1v3O] A

A}



Page 22



xR T = FET R s . L ...u..lm.u.....,.,nmn iz aa

BANGC

Page 23



Page 24



eulle\ pue
}led Aijunog adiuap a3

*31e31)|143) Ajajes sep e jo Adod e Suipnjpur ‘siedas
J0 UOIIRULIKUODD UM INSS] SIOIIBIIUOI |I3UN PIIB|OS)
3q M SI2IAUDS Jey) puejisiapun pue Suipoopj Ja)ye
s)yJ0m Jiedas Ino Aited 0] SI01IRIJUO0I UMO AW 1IBIUGI ||IMm |

*U0I1I3UUDD [BIN1D3[0 puk 3Femas ‘ajem ‘sed ‘uolpuod
8uis 03 I8y o Aed 0] adusp 3T AsUoYIne |
:9)oi4dosddp so ¥y

Page 25



PRODUCED OCTOBER 2014

REVISED JUNE 2021

ABOUT LITTLE VENICE COUNTRY PARK
AND MARINA

Little Venice is located along the river Medway just outside of the village
of Yalding. Within the Yalding area are three rivers the Beult, the Teise
and the Medway all converging nearby into the Medway that passes
alongside the park. As such the low-lying land around these rivers
including Little Venice is known as flood risk areas. Details of areas liable
to flooding are available on the Environment Agencies website at
www.environment-agency.gov.uk/floodrisk.

[ Map of X: STLISSLY: 148, T00.08 o oake 1 399,000 Ot maope I Cwta womrch @ Toat.oonly version B
Clck o o0 ara fx dehs TV O .._Hﬁ
5 13 oot Vg vt | Ty

L
lﬁllllll

werrgr

1] Pt et Acier )
-] A ey sy s
T ey
(=] [ Fower bt sressiceny
o)

Fomsr' vl reomioryey Sy
fom|

i it yngd Eoun hovain
o

& P ek S i

enterden

o
1

WORKS PERMISSION FORM FOLLOWING
FLOODING

Please complete this form and return to the office. We will then
use this information to organise any work during flooding.

Please note this is at a cost to you and will be invoiced as such. [f
your insurance covers this works then you can forward on any
invoices at the time to your Insurance Company along with your
claim form. (to be completed in capitals)

Name. i reeenrene . Plot Number.................. Date..............

Address of Main Residence to be held on file:

Py T T P P T L TP SstesssesestsaTsssare It IR ETese e eREee J T

--------------- P T T T T T T T Ty T TR T T TP R R P P P P T PR T P T PP T TR Y TR I

Current Contact Numbers:
Name: Number:
Name: Number:

Emergency Contact/Next of Kin:

Name: Number:

Relationship to person completing this form:

Does this emergency contact have authorisation to agree works on
your behalf if you are unable to be contacted.

Please tick:
Yes No
Caravan Lodge Boat

19

Page 26



3

uapsep poojd Juioduo ue umt 01 anunuol pue dn 335 0} (PUNG)
ysnosog auocispiely pue Adualy juswuosaul Iyl ‘andisay pue aui
1ua) ‘siaumo a3po|/ ueaesed yum Supjiom e JuawaBeuel 3UIAA (1]

(uonepowuodde Asesodwia) yum 15|55€ 03 3|qe aq |Im Jpunod) ydnolog
auo)splep "aJuapisal Ajuo JnoA ag pinom iyl se ‘a11s Uo SHUN [eRUAPISaL
a34y) ayy o1 Ajdde jou |pw siy3) a8po| fueaeles JnoA asn jouued noA
121 JUDAD BY] U1 3JUBPISAL UIBW JNOA 0} UINIBI PINOYS NOA "Swoy Aepljoy
anoA si siyy se usnoy Aesodwa) Joy paydeoudde aq Jou pjnoys |1Iunod
ysnosog auoyspieiy ‘Suipooyy Jofew so paguojoud 4o JuaA3 3y} ul (38
1910y |E20] J0 Ajiue) ‘pudli} 03 0F 01) uejd sajzeLIA)E UB BABY 1SN NOA
‘33(10U HIOYS J€ |3ARI) 03 3|(]e JOU 24,n0A Jo 19| Atesodwa) Bulag | o) anp
8JU3P|SaJ UIEW NOA 01 LIN1DJ 0} B|gEUN 342 NOA JRY] SISIE UOENYS 2Y)
J '@ouapisal urewl oA 0] 3ujuinial Aq 24 pINom SIY ) "UCHIEPOLILLIOIIE
aajjeusaje 404 ueld osje 3snw NoA ‘ueld poold [BUOSIad Syl Sunajdwod
Uaym "uO JBYLIN} UE|d POOJS |BUOSIAd Y} jo Adod B paydele ARy I\

*sujuiem poojj anida.L
0} Jajsidal 0} Jaquiny 2uy) pooyj ay) Joj a8ed siaquinu |ngasn ay) 335

{uejd-pooy-|euosiad/suoneaqnd/iuausanod/yn A8 mmm//:sdny)

) {(papooy-aq-01-Inoqe/yn-dio wnioypoo)yjeuoneu//:dny)

*WwnJoj pooj |leuoneu

pue aysgam Aduay juawuosiaul 3yl uo punoy aq ued siyy uo diPH
"a2ejd u| ue|d POO|J |EUOSIAd B 3ABY NOA 3JNSU 0 SI 1S)| JNOA UO 15114

‘papadaz
AABY SIIIEM POOYS BU) Jaye asn |Ewiou 0) Yaeq Suuinyad ul uondnisip
jo awn ayy Buniwy u isisse |m ueid siy} Suipooy afeas adse| Jo
JUAAD 3y} uj "JuaAs Suipooy(} [enae pue Sujutem pooyy 113je pooyy e Juunp
28po| 10 ueae.ed JNOA Jo asn ay) 01 uoRdnus)p 3Ry Se aaey sinoqydipu
JnoA pue noA aunsua o} yJed ay) Joy S3|NJ pue uopewLIOUI SBUNINO uB|d
51U} ‘poo}} e O JUaAS AY] U ajes ase Ausadosd inoA pue noA Jeyl aunsus of

UZEOO._H— 404 szgﬂ_mm& wz_mm

8T

Ovd
JANVIE V SI1 39Vd SIHL

Page 27



programme. This will see two or more caravan owner volunteers at Little
Venice along with appointed staff being trained to deal with the situation
during flooding. This will include ensuring people are aware, on site,
when flood alerts and flood warnings are issued, helping site users to
gain access or leave the park should the water break the banks. Flood
Wardens will also guide emergency services around the park during
flooding, giving the emergency service onsite knowledge of where roads
and paths lay under water and assisting in the evacuation of people
onsite, should the need arise.

To ensure staff and Flood Wardens are aware of every person on site
when a flood alert is issued, an up-to-date register will be opened of
everyone on site. This will include their contact details updated and their
emergency contact or next of kin details updated. We may also take
details of vehicles on site. This register will be kept up to date by either
staff or the Flood Wardens depending on the situation at the time. As
flooding could happen anytime of the day, we may contact you by phone
to confirm if you are on site when a flood alert is issued or if we are
unable to contact you, a Flood Warden or member of staff may check in
person at your unit to see who is on site, this may mean a knock on the
door in the middle of the night, but this is for your safety and awareness
of potential flooding.

The following pages outline our flood procedure at each stage of the
flood alert and warning scale.

To ensure you and your property are prepared for flooding, to prevent
damage or harm to you or others we have outlined below some
procedures and rules that must be followed. These rules or procedures
may change from time to time or during a flood event if required. The
Management of Little Venice give the power to staff and Flood Wardens
acting on our behalf to enforce or adjust these rules or procedures if the
situation calls for it. If you feel that the requests are unpractical or
unsafe, please make your reasons why known or speak to one of the
Management.

» Waterproof boots, waders. O Torch with spare
batteries.

* Mobile phone and charger.

» Some form of walking stick to help feel your footing if
the water covers the view of the floor and speed
bumps along the road.

« Animal transport boxes if you have pets.
* Any medication

You will not be able to return to your caravan/lodge until
an evacuation order has been lifted by the park
management. Flood Wardens will not be allowed to
return to your caravan/lodge at any time during an
evacuation.

17

Page 28



J0U 51358 SIY1 J| “SIYpZ uey) $53| U Inado [im pooyy paipald ay) §i ssa|
papaau §] pue Jead 0] SJYp¢ JO WNWIXBW B UIAIF 3q [|IM J2UMO UBARIED
ay3 uiuiem pooy|) Jo Li3je poo)) arn2e ue Suunp 3dpoj/ueaeled ayl Japun
Palols aq 031 punoy aJe SWay eyl JUIAd 3y U] "Joumo 3dpoj/ueaeled
3yy ouo passed aq |im pasndul 3502 Auy ‘Swajl asayl Jo asodsip
0] uooe ayel | am "Juppap e jo doy uo '§'s aBel01s Jo) adejd ajes e u)
Ind aq 0} 3|qeun Ji pue Jels J0 JaGIL e Ag PaACLUD. 3 YIIM SWaYl L)
Buiuiem uaIm ay3 SuInE. JO SABP § UIYIIM PRJEIJD 30U BB SLUY 3L 4|
'SUOIHPUO) |EULLIOU BULINP JIUN 3Y) JO YIBDUISPUN B3 WO SWIY Jed)d 0}
sAep § Bunum uf uang 3q M NOA ueABIED A3 J3PUN PAL0YS 3q O} puUnoy
aJe swy| Aue J] ‘pamoj|o} Fulaq st 3|nd SIY) 2NSUS 03 JeaA ay: yanosyl
awn Aue je yoid Aue 03 apew aq Aew suondadsul wopuey 'poojy ay) Jaye
yun ays yo Sunus-as sy) Buiddols pue paddesy swodag 03 wayy Juisned
‘poojs e Bupnp J10Mm [BIBW PuE S3JNABP JBOJ} 5 IN0GYTIDU INOA pue InoA
Japun paysem s1IgIp Jo JuUnowe ay) o3 anp si siy) "a8po] 10 ueaesed ayy
40 Lied Aue Japun palols aq swa)| 3500 AU UED S2IUBISWUNDII OU JapUN)

‘uoinsod oyw
SJAMO| JUN pue sapadal Jalem ay) se J1un s noqydiau oA 10 JNCA Japun
padde.) 138 40 Aemedeaiq Jo jeoy ayy jo uopesade ay sedw Jou jpm
‘y1eausapun Juipnoul RUN Ayl Jo 10X 3y} 03 pappe Julaq sjeuaiew
Jayyo 1o sadid ‘sajged jeyr 3Yo oyl J0 (JUSPUUCI ODT e nok
41} 31954n0A yim Jayne ¥2ayd 3snw sed Suipnpul Suiquingd Jo suepirage
‘19 ‘Ays ‘-2 28po|/ueaeied oA o) sa1AIas mau Suippe Jo1denuod Auy

‘Buipoo)} jo Juaaa ayy ut Apadoud s snoquSiau 1NoA 10 JnoA
40 Aue uo 128443 OU BARY |JIM pUB 33U NS 3Y} YHM 513w J1 2JNSUD
01 PAYIBYI 3G UIYI |lim SIYJ "Pash a0 O} S|ELISJBW PUB SIUIWDINSEIW
Buipnpuy sueid Jo sSumesp yum Suoje Bupum w nd aq Isnw
10 ALIED 0] YSIM NOA JRUM JO UDIIBWIOJU "SIIUSWIWIOI YIOM AU 310)3q
wawadeue ayy Aq pasoidde aq 1snw 2319 sqejs Jo |3aelS 0} sseld woly
“8'a saoepns punosd o3 sadueyd ‘saau) ‘saauay ‘sdajs ‘Buppap Buipnpuy
eale uapied 10 adpoj/ueaesed noA Jo Jouaa ayy 0y saBueyd Auy

130U 10 JuIpooy JO HSH I8 JILagm SoW|] ([€ 10) 59|nJ AEpPAIoAs [EJeuaD

91
"(8uipooy
JO SWwJ03s 03 anp ssO| Jamod e JO JUaA3 3y} Ul “lom
0} Jomod paau 10U S30P 1BY] 19SPUBY B dABY 0] JuUeMm
Aew noA auy pue| e aaey noA j|} -auoyd andojeuy .

"noA 3ugnsisse 03 Jyoads aq Aew jey) swayl Joylo
Aue Jsapisuoa pinoys noA pue ‘suonseSSns |esauad Ajuo
S11sl] SIyL "poO0)} € JO JUaA3 3U] Ul 98p0| JO ueAesed INOA
ul 2aey o3 jnjdjay puy Aew noA swayl Jo 1s)| e S| mojag

ANVH O] JAVH 01 LNJINCINDT 1N43SN

666
:S321A198 Adudsiawg

0SZ 209 ¢Z9TO0
:[IPUN0) Yy3noiog auoispielnl

3881T 886 G180
88TT 886 St7€0
:(sua|e pooy)

llews pue 1xa3 ‘s||ed 3A19331 03 J31s18a1) JU| POO|4

Page 29



completed the Flood Wardens or staff will remove the items and dispose
of off-site.

Any garden furniture not able to be moved in the event of a flood alert
e.g. sheds, bunkers or large and bulky items must be fixed securely to the
ground at all times. In the event of a flood alert all loose items not
secured to the ground must be secured within the caravan or shed or
moved to higher ground e.g. the decking and where possible secured to
the decking also. This is in case flood waters reach these heights where
items have been stored (predicted water heights will be available from
the Flood Wardens as we are notified by the EA), this would include items
such as garden tables, chairs, BBQ's and plant pots.

USEFUL NUMBERS

Little Venice Office:
01622 814 158

Head Office — LEE PARK ESTATES LTD
01795 510094 — 9am to 5pm Only

(There is no answer machine on this number)

Little Venice Warden (1% Contact): Iris
lara

07904324260

Flood Wardens:

KARL ALLEN: 07851878273
IRIS LARA :07710614711
SCOTT CAREY:

PHILL HOSKINGS:

DAVE SIMMONS:

LLYOD GOODAYLE:

15

Page 30



‘po0|} & J3)4e pue

Buunp ||e o3 uondnasip apy| se s1 8Jayl aunsua o) pue sunoqydiau 1nok jo
Alajes 2yl .o} 2uop S| SIY ) "WAY] SA0WAI 0] BAEY am JI SEB 10 311100 JO SS0|
Aue Jo pasned adewep Aue Joj Ajljiqisuodsal a)e) 10U |jIm am 310U Ised|d
WAy} SAOLLAS 0} UDIIIE DYEY ||IM 3M ‘palou swajqoid ay) aajos21 0] NoA
352 0} uoseas Aue J0j NOA 1DBJUOD JOUUBD 3M PuB A[1I3.4I02 PRACWLA] 10
paunlas Jou ale sa[noq sed ayl 18yl |994 A3yl J0 am J| pue sapioq sed se
yons swayl Aq pasned ag Aew ey swajqo.d so) SupIayd aq ||Im sUIpIes
pool4 ayl Suiuiem Jo ulje pooly e Buung Samoq ayl Wwoly Supes)
sed 2jqewweyy Aue Suiddois ‘iolejndau pue sasoy sed ayy o3 afewep
wansad osje [ sy ‘Ap pue ajes a8poj/ueaeled 1noA 3uidasy sway
[BUJIX3 WOLY FIUBIPUIY OU Yim Aj1224102 ajesado o) 32inap uoneloy
adpoj/ueaelea 3yl moje o1 JUOp 3G ISNLW SIY) "BaJe INOA Saydeal
Jalem Aue asojaq sojeindas Byl WOL) PalIBUU0ISIP 3Je SAN0Q sed
3y 184} 3nsU 15NW NoA ‘panssi s| Bujutem pooj) e UBYM 33|S UO B NOA
pue a21Aap 1E0}4 40 Ja3J1| 3]110q SBE € 3ARY J0U Op NOA | wiiey woly Aeme
PRJ4NJ3s 10 PSACLUSI PUB UBABJED 3Y] WOy PIALLOISIP 3G ISNW $3]110q
sed ay) (SAep Jo JaqWINU e 10§ UBABIED U} LLIOJ) ABME 3 [|IM NOA LOSRS
Aue 1oy} 31) ‘s10|4 10 SJ9YJ)| 213309 SES Y panly Jou 2. saBpo|/sueaeied
IBYM  "punoJe Jeo|} ajIoq syl pinoys paddes) 393 Jo 3y pijnoa
.amﬁ Sujyidve woay Jsesp a(lgo paxy Jo Suppap ayy o) um_u.zmh:umm
aq pnoys aljeq Adwa ayl ‘Apaneusaly "AsaAlpp aul o awg Iyl
12 8JaY1 Jou a1e noA §) A3y 9y JO UOIIEID) JO BPOD 3] JO ASpamouy yels
3y an13 3snw noA yoojped pue ujeyd e yum paxdoj 4 ‘uayel ag pinoys
N0 YAYM 3JeME 348 YJeIs 05 PajIeLl ‘aA3P JB0Y JC I3 9|noq
sed ayy ul Jayua 1day aq 3snw ddueydxa Jo uonda|od Buiieme sa0q
Adwa Aue suaje pooyy Suling "2 sdaas 3ing ¥uQ Jo Sudap a1,noh se
Yans 333[qo paxiy e 0} paundas aq Jsnw sayNog aJeds ay) ‘(passal3p aq
01 9|qe Jou aJe sajPoq Juawade|das pue ‘pasop aq ABw 3210 Y} Uaym)
SEWISIYD Se Y3Nns UDSEas J0j 3210 Yl Yyum paaide ssapun awny Aue
12 1day aq Aew a8poj/ueaesed Jad saI0q OMm] UBRY) 310W ON “papiroad
349Um SIE0J4 JO Sial 9joq Sed yum pasndas aq isnw saoq sen

$311109g SvO

¥i

“yJjom adid
Jo 1ole|nday 'sa)1n0q Aue 0} pasned adewep ou Si 3133 3INSu 0}
‘uoliejjelsul INoA 10j 31ea1U3) A134ES SBO B 53nss) JaauBua sed
payiienb e pue paduuod A[2iNd3s a3Je 38emas pue 131em JNoA
1841 221440 3yl 03 Funum ul swLyuod uosiad Jualadwod e pun
PIJe|Os! LIBWAY ||IM SIY) "S3PaJ3J J31EM POO|J 3Y) SE JIUN INOA
0} pa1ejos| aq | sed pue Jajem ay: ‘sadid [10s paldauUGIS|P
wouy uonnjod juaaasd o) pue aSpo) 10 ueaeled e Jo ash
ajesun ay] Juanatd o) "Ysim noA se S1om 3y 1IN0 Aued 03 anoyd
JnoA jo Jopenuod e yum aduelie pue 1339 ued nop - z uopdo  (q
‘palayeun
3JB SUOIPDALUODD [EJ1ID]3 ¥I3Yd pue sed pue ajsem ‘Jajem
Jo Ajndas pue Ajaes Suppayd ‘@8poj/ueaeled 1noA J3pun sugap
paddess soy Buppay> apnpul Im sty aqissod se uopdnissiul
3| SE AUNSUI pue syse] ||e Ino Auted ued Jeis ays - T wondo (e
1S2DIAIIS
JO UOI}IBUUOIDL 10} $S3IIOUD OM) aney noA aus 03 Buluinias uQ
-Aessaoau aJaym
adpoj/ueaesed yoea o) sanddns jecwdad pue sed ‘Jajem ||e a1e(os
(M (papadas aaey sialem pooy) Jaye) yeis 1eo) adpo| Jo ueaesed
e jew 0} pannbas yidap ayl saydeau Jaiem 3yl Jeyl JUIA Ay} U
"pajepdn aq ued 4335193 poojs ay) 0s BuuINial g [|IM NOA UIYM JO
sn unojuy aseald ‘sduiuiem Jo sp3je pooyy Supnp aps Yo aze noA sn
PO} @ABY NOA J1 10 UOIIENIEAD UB Ja}Je Jaya 1is 0} Buiuinias aloeg

poo|4 B 42y Suluiniay

Page 31



Example of gas bottle riser

How FLOATS OPERATE

Below you will see a rough diagram of how the different types of
floatation devices operate, to give you an idea of the direction and
movement that the caravan/lodge will experience when floating.

When a caravan or lodge floats (due to the design of the framework that
has to move) there is a certain amount of movement sideways which
may cause the caravan/lodge to reposition itself after a flood of up to
50mm or 2 inches over from its original position. This may mean that
decking steps, walls fences or even raised slabbing on floors may be in
the way as the unit returns to its sitting piers. This could cause a lot of

8

Severe Flood Warning

= On recelving a severe flood warning a member of the Management
team will attend site to access the situation and liaise directly with
Flood Wardens and all owners still on site.

»  Should the need to evacuate be required the register will be used to
contact all still on site and make arrangements to leave.

«  |If the site is evacuated a member of staff will be on site 24/7 until
such time that the owners can return. They will work with
subcontractor security where needed and report directly to the
police as required. The Management will insist that the police
patrols are increased at this time, but cannot guarantee complete
security due to the size of the site and access issues, so please take
all valuables and personal possession with you.

»  During flooding, at all times possible, the office will be manned at
Little Venice. Should this not be possible staff will be relocated to a
third party location nearby. This location will be updated in the
event of a flood and you will be notified by the office of Flood
Wardens.

Flood Wardens
The Flood Wardens are for notifying of likely flooding, collecting

information for the office and flood register, and checking that areas of
the site are prepared for flooding.

All Flood Wardens have attended a comprehensive flood training course
including water rescue. They will report to Little Venice Management
Team. They are not to be used as a ‘taxi service’, only for emergency
access and egress of the site.

The boat and eguipment has been provided for the Flood Wardens to
use. This equipment is not for general use, and for emergency purposes
only.

13

Page 32



& 43

“eIpaW |B120S 3|qB|IBAE PUB SUIPJEA
|8AS punol9 Poojd y3noay) S1IaUMO ueAelEd 03 yoeq Lodas pue Jayleam |enpde

pue paipasd uo ajep 03 dn Suidaay ‘stweay Buluueld Asualiaws pue
5a21A49s Aduadawa |edo| pue AduaBy JUIWUOSIAUT 3Y) YiIm 108U

JUEISUOD Ul 3q ||M JudwaTeuey adtuaA 91131 Buusem poojj e Buung .
REGR e === *Al3y31) 350[2 03 UOIIIE UNO e} J0U
_ ! op ase2d 0s 3502 0} padu Ay} Uw(| 03 ase|d Ul Aje sainpadoid pue
Uizl Amqeceapoog very |- — — I“r ey I sassado.d pooyy asayy “Aduale Juawuoiaug ay) Aq S|aAa| snosaduep
. _ | ! yaeal [ 943 Y3 Jey) pauiioju) ase 1o Ajajes sjesado 1a8uo
I L .".| i |“ ou ued Aayj |9y Aayy J1 9IS 3yl IS0D 13A3 AJUO |Im JuawaBeur
! ‘ 3yl rsuoseas Ajages 10y 3YS dy) IS0 03 IAeY Juswafeuep
. : 3yl pinoys uiod S|yl 38 Suondo UONEPOWILIOIIE BANBUIIYE
e 00| 01 JeIs 0} P33u |Im XS UO (s ssaumo alpojfuesele) .
‘wJae MC_”_...:_ )oeq ‘papuaneun Apadosd
e 413y} aAed| 03 pasnbai sdais |je uayes aaey Aayl 232 pue uonenys
0} HC OL..-. %O >>.®_> w_o_m "_.O w_QEme 83Ul jo aieme e Aayz aunsua o1 3us uo jou (s1auUmo :m»mhmu Ag
' ' pajeujwou uosiad Jo) sioumo aBpoj/ueaeses Aue 10R3U0D |iIm JeIS .
"151558 01 panbaJu se uf pajjea aq jm
"Sunjeo|) usym s5|3AB4] JJUN 3Y) UOIIBHP 3Y] uo Sutpuadap €35 ||BD U0 33 pue 3yis uo Suosiad ||e 1DBIL0D [)im SUBPIEM POOH .
95e3.03p JO 3SEAIIUl ABW JUN AY] pue SAINIINAS 3SAY) UIIMIBQ
sdeg 232 530ua) ‘Bupjaap ‘sdays ‘8'a Jun ay) Jeau papnisuod Juiypiue ‘usniel aq [im uonoe
Y sIy) 4O} SEIUBMO||E 3HEW 0} Pasu |IM NOA ‘SISCI 35aY) 1SA0D Bumoioy 3yl v3 ayi Aq panssi Sujag Bujuiem poojs e Jo JuaAD 3yl U}
01 BABY P(NOM J3UMO UBARIED 3U) PUE JUEJ3 B 3PN|IUI ABLU YDILM SHIOM M: _ ulde \S —u o O_ n—

Jofew noym adpoj/ueaeled NoA uopisOd-al ued am Aem ou S| aJay)
Nun JnoA yoddns a1 pue [9A3124 01 B|qe aJe am ynoyyy -Ajjeuostad
NOA U0 51503 ||e Ind Uyl pINoMm pue swiep aduesnsus AUe ploa Aews siy).

‘pauonisod Aj3alioou] 33
duppdap se yans sajuanyuy [ewsaixs Aq pasned afeweq ‘ssamoj Hun ayy
PUe 53padal Jajem 3y) se JJasH Jun 3yl udAa Jo Bunuys JnoA 03 afewep

Page 33



Example of rear view of a side lifting arm.

I - B
|
_II.|._.II|I||...|||J_ i
! {
| _.lll.ullll.lh.llmll.llll.u Max fipedi
T L]
e - - = Saating a1
| m—
Ground level

LITTLE VENICE FLOOD PROCEDURE

During normal operations throughout the year staff will be asked to
check as they work throughout the park for anything that may have
an impact on the flooding. As well as our staff we ask that all
customers do the same. If you feel there are any issues that need
addressing please make the staff aware by emailing
info@littlevenicepark.co.uk or writing to us.

In the event of the Environment Agency issuing a flood alert the following
action will be taken:

/8 Flood Alert

»  Flood Wardens will be in contact with Little Venice Management to
start to collect all the information required for the register of people
on site and their plans to deal with the flood.

»  During normal working hours staff will be tasked with checking from

plot to plot for any of the issues mentioned earlier in this document
10

and report back to the office to arrange for any works required. This
work will all be documented in a flood report file so we can look back
after the flood to see if any work is required or if anything could have
been done better. Out of hours the Flood Wardens will work
alongside an on call member of the Little Venice Management to
continue any other works or information gathering.

During a flood alert if you decide to leave the site to go to your
alternative accommodation or return to site, please ensure a Flood
Warden or member of staff based in the office is informed of your
movements (please do not tell a member of staff working around the
site as they may not have access to the register).

A member of the Little Venice Management will be in contact with
the EA Control Centre from this point on until flood warnings are
removed. This is to gain information of predicted heights expected
of flood waters and times the peak is expected. This information will
be passed to Flood Wardens and action required, depending on the
information, will be passed out to caravan/lodge owners as required.
Gaging boards will be fitted to the office, laundry and bar buildings
and will have markings on them which the Flood Wardens will adjust
according to the EA. Anybody found using these gaging boards
without permission will be in breach of their Site Licence and Park
Rules.

We would ask that at this stage of flood alert any vehicle on site or
along Hampstead Lane have a plot number or contact phone number
displayed in the windscreen.

No further action will be taken at this point.

11

Page 34



Environment
//Agency

P:risl es and communities working toaether
Community . g, = 25 Address | T hu STeADb LACE
orgrowp | L viile Ve co oK UALD G Konk . Mes &

=

Floodiine Quickdial

Number C WPT@ jmm,.ﬂw \\2B flood warnings are you TELERLTICIOE

Which Environment Agency D e .
Ewaire s

registered to receive?

MessAGES, DiRecT CAUS

Local flood warning trigger
1 e when waler reaches bottom of the bridge

WHRES T CT TRALICA VS W e, Bonts

pwb.

oate |7 |1\ \ 2O

.

Environment Agency - Community Flood Plan

Page 35



Contents

A

Actions to be taken before a flood
A - Locations at risk of flooding: flood warnings
B - Locations at risk of flooding: locations at risk of flooding / sources of flooding
C - Locations at risk of flooding: map showing direction of flooding

Actions to b _ I
A - Local flood actions
B - Local volunteers / flood wardens

C - Important telephone numbers

D - Available resources

E - Arrangements between authorities

F - Vuinerable residents, properties and locations

U
[y

After a flood
A - Reputable contractors

Environment Agency — Community Flood Plan

Page 36



1A - Locations at risk of flooding: Flood warnings

From the information you have available, make a list of areas liable to flood and the level of warning which would affect them.

Area number

Location of risk

|

Trigger level

|

Actions

Area 1

ﬁ/ Ve, MO\NCLy iy ﬁ.\;‘.}/ﬁh\—
Cote Lv 13

MAR A C AR Thex

ﬂ,.//,me e

| e P> wad enna.

MNoyu=e Cay S Yo

Area 2

Area 3

Area 4

Area 5

Area 6

| Area 7

Area 8

Environment Agency — Community Flood Plan

Page 37



1B ~ Actions to be taken before a flood: Locations at risk of flooding / source of flooding

'nsert details of areas at risk from flooding and the direction of flooding. Include maps and if possible, details of existing defences.

Area number |

Location at risk |

____Source of flooding

Direction of flooding

Area 1

Area 2

Area 3

Page 38

| Area 7

Area 8

Environment Agency — Community Flood Plan



1C -~ Actions to be taken hefore a flood: Map showing direction of flooding

Include a map i the flood plan showing the flood risk area and direction of flooding.

.

\

e —Sr— — P —— I ]

Environment Agency — Community Flood Plan

Page 39



2A — Actions to be taken during a flood: local flood actions

Identify local flood actions.

Area number

Location at risk

_

Action / trigger

Local action

Equipment recuired Time required

Area 1

Area 2

Area 3

Area 4

Page 40

__ Area 5

Area 6

Area 7

Area 8

Environment Agency - Community Flood Plan



List local volunteers/flood wardens that could be contacted in an incident. They may be required to lift heavy sandbags so should be
reasonably active or fit. Consider using other volunteers such as communicators, administrators or minders of vulnerable people during an
Incident. These volunteers could be registered on the Environment Agency’s Floodline Warnings Direct service so they receive the flood
warnings. Volunteers must not put their own life at risk.

Name Address Telephone Da Telephone Evenin Mobile

Environment Agency — Community Flood Plan



Make a list of important telephone numbers so all the information you require during an incident is readily available

Organisation

Floodline
Environment Agency
District Council
County Council
County Contracting
Fire & Rescue Service
Police

“mbulance Service
Housing Unit
Environment Unit
Water Company
Electricity Company
Gas Company
Telecommunications Company

Adjacent Town/Parish Councils

Telephone (office hours

Telephone (out of hours _ Fax

mzsazamwmﬂm:ﬂ. — Community Flood Plan

Page 42



2D ~ Actions to be taken during a flood: Available resources

Identify available resources.

Organisation

Resource

Number

Location

Notes

Environment Agency — Community Fiood Plan

Page 43



2E - Actions to be taken during a flood: Arrangements between authorities

Details of specific arrangements between the various authorities to be included here.

Organisation(s)

Agreed arrancement

Environment Agency — Community Flood Plan

Page 44



List vulnerable people, properties and locations where early assistance may be required

Name Address

Davtime telephone  Evening telephone

Assistance required

Environment Agency ~ Community Fiood Plan

Page 45



3A - After a flood: Reputable contractors

List companies/reputable contractors whose help you may need after a flood Get contracts in place, or know who to call for assistance. If
help is not needed, you can leave this section blank. If you plan’to do the work yourself leave this section blank.
e

o

L Henne o

Company name Business (e.o. builder) B Telehone | Fax m

A Dhmace | ABSeeD icbh ) OWIANC J\ﬁ D __ |
A= MW Y ool Yo wse \nyoocanice Bl x\ £5 m
\J-& Hwave A_\,._.N.Omuﬁﬁyiﬁ,ba Mw@f TEMP 4 170 |5 P L

Environment Agency ~ Community Flood Plan

Page 46



Agenda Item 9

To: Kent Flood Risk Management Committee — 8" July 2021

From: Rebecca Spore, Director of Infrastructure, Strategic and
Corporate Services

Subject: Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and
KCC severe weather response activity.

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary: To update Kent Flood Risk Management Committee on the current water
situation, weather statistics, Environment Agency and Met Office Warnings, and flood
response activity since the last meeting of the Committee on 15™ March 2021.

1.2

1.3

Background

This report is the latest of the regular updates to the Committee addressing the
current water situation and severe weather and flood response activity, and
covers the period from March to June 2021.

The KCC Resilience and Emergency Planning Service Duty Emergency
Planning Officer (DEPO) and Contact Point receive Environment Agency (EA)
and Met Office alerts and warnings regarding severe weather on a 24/7 basis.
Any site-specific severe weather impacts are notified to the DEPO by the
emergency services and other resilience partners, with reports from the public
received by Contact Point and passed on to the DEPO and/or Kent Highways.
DEPO further initiates multi-agency reporting using the county council’s
innovative Severe Weather Impacts System (SWIMS) to capture resources and
costs arising from severe weather incidents.

Some 85,500 residential and commercial addresses across Kent are located
within areas identified as at risk from fluvial (river) or tidal (coastal) flooding.
Where possible, flood vulnerable properties are offered a Flood Warning
Service by the EA. Early warning of flood risk to communities (including areas
outside of floodplains) is delivered through Flood Guidance Statements, Severe
Weather Warnings and mobilisation of the Kent Resilience Forum (KRF)
Severe Weather Advisory Group (SWAG).

Kent water situation and weather statistics

Kent’s rainfall total for March 2021 was some 88% of the long-term monthly
average for the county. However, April was drier still, with around 8% of normal
rainfall for the month.

Page 47



2.2

2.3

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

May was a wetter month, with 151% of long-term average rainfall recorded.
Widespread showery rain fell for much of the month, with the highest totals
recorded on the 17" May along the Kent / East Sussex border. Drier, more
settled weather arrived in the last six days of the month.

June saw some unsettled weather, particularly around the middle of the month,
where some spells of heavy rainfall were experienced. Up to 22" June rainfall
was 148% of long-term average. The month of June had by 22" June recorded
a mean temperature a little above average at +1.8 C, following cooler months in
April (-2.3 C) and May -1.3 C).

The latest data available from the Environment Agency on soil moisture deficits
and groundwater recharge is disappointing. At the end of May soil moisture
deficits remained above long-term average right across Kent, with no effective
groundwater recharge taking place. With no recharge in April or May,
groundwater levels declined throughout these months. However, from an
overall groundwater resources perspective, there are no immediate concerns
flagged, as current groundwater conditions are still best described as normal to
above normal. The situation will continue to be monitored as summer
progresses.

Reservoir levels are mostly near their long-term average for the time of year,
with Bewl at 90% and Bough Beech at 91% of normal levels.

11 Flood Alerts were issued by the EA since the last meeting of the committee
(six fluvial and five coastal)'. This contrasts with six Flood Alerts (two fluvial and
four coastal) for the same period last year.

The Met Office issued five weather warnings covering Kent between March and
June 2021 (three yellow warning for wind and two yellow warnings for
thunderstorms)?. This contrasts with 10 Met Office weather warnings (five
yellow warnings for wind, one amber warning for rain and four yellow warnings
for thunderstorms) for 2020.

The Thames Barrier was closed on four occasions since the last meeting of the
committee in March (two for flood defence and two for test purposes)®. The
figure for the corresponding period last year was six (one for flood defence and
five for test purposes).

The generally unsettled weather conditions experienced in Kent during the
second half of June have resulted in some localised highway and surface water
flooding impacts. The A20 London Road at Aylesford, Hythe High Street and
parts of the Low Weald and Len Valley were notably affected by these intense
summer rainfall events. Collateral impacts from this unsettled weather included
a lightning strike on a pumping station at Thanet, resulting in a marine pollution
event, and subsidence affecting some local road and rail networks.

! Please see appendix 1
’ Please see appendix 2
® Please see appendix 3

Page 48



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.3

Outlook

The Met Office three month outlook summary indicates a 15% chance that July
to September will be cooler than average, a 50% chance that it will be near
average and a 35% chance that it will be hotter than average. In terms of
rainfall, the summary indicates a 30% chance the season will be drier than
average, 55% chance that it will be near average and a 15% chance it will be
wetter than average.

The EA continuously runs surge forecasts, informed by astronomical tide
calculations. If a risk of coastal flooding is forecast, then this information is
communicated to partners. The next notably high equinoctial spring tides, with a
corresponding elevated risk of coastal flooding - if in combination with high
winds, are forecast for early November.

To support local contingency planning for flood response, two table-top training
exercises are scheduled for the autumn. On 28" October Exercise Scarce
Emerald will test the county council’s planning for a reservoir dam breach, while
on 4™ November Exercise Basilea will simulate a storm surge and coastal
flooding response scenario. Key county council personnel and partner agencies
will participate in these exercises, which form a part of an extensive KCC
emergency planning exercise programme.

Kent Flood Risk Management Committee will continue to receive regular
updates on water resources, flood alerts, weather warnings and response.

Recommendations

That Members note the warnings received since the last meeting of the
Committee; and contribute to planning and response policy and practice
through oversight and debate.

Contact Details

Report Author: Tony Harwood (Resilience and Emergency Planning Manager),
Infrastructure, Strategic and Corporate Services, tel. 03000 413 386, e-mail
tony.harwood@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director: Rebecca Spore (Director of Infrastructure), Strategic and
Corporate Services tel. 03000 412 064, email rebecca.spore@kent.gov.uk

Page 49



mailto:tony.harwood@kent.gov.uk
mailto:rebecca.spore@kent.gov.uk

Appendix 1: EA Flood Alerts and Warnings issued since 15™ March 2021

Date issued Flood Zone Status
28/04/2021 Tidal Thames riverside fr(_)m Dartford Creek and Mar Alert
Dyke to the Thames Barrier
28/04/2021 Isle of Sheppey and Coast from Kemsley to Seasalter Alert
28/04/2021 Coast from Whitstable to Margate Alert
28/04/2021 Tidal Medway, Medway estuary and Isle of Grain Alert
28/04/2021 Coast from Dartford to Allhallows Alert
17/06/2021 Shuttle and Cray Alert
17/06/2021 Pent Stream in Folkestone Alert
18/06/2021 Plenty, Swalecliffe and West Brooks Alert
18/06/2021 River Bourne from Hadlow to East Peckham Alert
18/06/2021 Upper River Stour Alert
29/06/2021 Rivers on the Isle of Sheppey Alert

Appendix 2: Met Office Severe Weather Warnings since 15" March 2021

Warnings (by period of extreme weather) Date

3 Wind 10 — 11 March, 3 - 4 May & 20 — 21 May
1 Thunderstorm 16 — 19 June
1 Thunderstorm 27 June

Appendix 3: Environment Agency Thames Barrier closures since 15" March 2021

Thames Barrier closures Date Status
Thames Barrier closed 18/03/2021 Test
Thames Barrier closed 15/04/2021 Test
Thames Barrier closed 28/04/2021 Operational
Thames Barrier closed 14/06/2021 Operational

Page 50




	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the meeting on 15 March 2021
	8 Little Venice Country Park and Marina
	Item 08 Appendix 1
	Item 08 Appendix 2
	Item 08 Appendix 3
	Item 08 Appendix 4
	Item 08 Appendix 5
	Item 08 Appendix 6

	9 Environment Agency and Met Office Alerts and Warnings and KCC severe weather response activity

